
 

 

Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Cyllid 
Lleoliad: 

Hybrid - Ystafell Bwyllgora 4 Tŷ Hywel a 

fideogynadledda drwy Zoom 

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 2 Chwefror 

2022 

Amser: 09.30

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a: 

Owain Roberts 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6388  

SeneddCyllid@senedd.cymru

------ 

Yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 34.19, penderfynodd y Cadeirydd 

wahardd y cyhoedd o gyfarfod y Pwyllgor er mwyn diogelu iechyd 

y cyhoedd. Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei ddarlledu'n fyw ar 

www.senedd.tv  

 

Rhag-gyfarfod preifat - Anffurfiol (09:15-09:30)  

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau 

(09.30)   

2 Papurau i’w nodi 

(09.30) (Tudalennau 1 - 6)  

Cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 19 Ionawr  

Cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 21 Ionawr 

2.1 PTN 1 - Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol: Cyfarfod Pedrochrog 

y Gweinidogion Cyllid - 21 Ionawr 2022 

 (Tudalennau 7 - 8)  

2.2 PTN 2 - Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Cyllid a Llywodraeth Leol ynglŷn â’r Bil 

Trethi: Bil Deddfau Trethi Cymru etc. (Pŵer i Addasu) - 24 Ionawr 2022 

 (Tudalennau 9 - 10)  

2.3 PTN 3 - Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol: Ddefnyddio cyfalaf 

trafodiadau ariannol - 26 Ionawr 2022 

 (Tudalennau 11 - 14)  

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



 

 

2.4 PTN 4 - Adroddiad y Swyddfa Archwilio Genedlaethol: Gweinyddu cyfraddau 

treth incwm Cymru 2020-21 - Ionawr 2022 

 (Tudalennau 15 - 16)  

3 Bil Deddfau Trethi Cymru etc. (Pŵer i Addasu): Sesiwn dystiolaeth 

2 

(09.30-10.20) (Tudalennau 17 - 36)  

John Cullinane, Cyfarwyddwr Polisi Cyhoeddus, Sefydliad Siartredig Trethiant  

Lakshmi Narain, Cadeirydd Pwyllgor Technegol Cymru’r Sefydliad Trethiant 

Siartredig 

 

Dogfennau ategol: 

FIN(6)-05-22 P1 Sefydliad Siartredig Trethiant a Grŵp Diwygio Trethi Incwm 

Isel 

Papur Briffio gan Ymchwil y Senedd 

Egwyl (10.20-10.30)  

 

4 Bil Deddfau Trethi Cymru etc. (Pŵer i Addasu): Sesiwn dystiolaeth 

3 

(10.30-11.30) (Tudalennau 37 - 66)  

Frank Haskew, Pennaeth Treth, Sefydliad Cyfrifwyr Siartredig Cymru a Lloegr 

Richard Lloyd-Bithell, Uwch-reolwr Polisi a Thechnegol, Sefydliad Siartredig 

Cyllid Cyhoeddus a Chyfrifyddiaeth 

Glenn Collins, Pennaeth Polisi, Ymgysylltiad Technegol a Strategol, 

Cymdeithas Cyfrifwyr Ardystiedig Siartredig y DU 

 

Dogfennau ategol: 

FIN(6)-05-22 P2 – Sefydliad Cyfrifwyr Siartredig Cymru a Lloegr 

FIN(6)-05-22 P3 - Sefydliad Siartredig Cyllid Cyhoeddus a Chyfrifyddiaeth 

FIN(6)-05-22 P4 - Cymdeithas Cyfrifwyr Ardystiedig Siartredig y DU 

Papur Briffio gan Ymchwil y Senedd 



 

 

Egwyl (11.30-11.40)  

 

5 Bil Deddfau Trethi Cymru etc. (Pŵer i Addasu): Sesiwn dystiolaeth 

4 

(11.40-12.10) (Tudalennau 67 - 72)  

Dyfed Alsop, Prif Weithredwr, Awdurdod Cyllid Cymru 

Sam Cairns, Prif Swyddog Gweithredu, Awdurdod Cyllid Cymru 

Dave Matthews, Pennaeth Strategaeth Treth a Pholisi, Awdurdod Cyllid Cymru 

 

Dogfennau ategol: 

Papur Briffio gan Ymchwil y Senedd 

6 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42(ix) i benderfynu gwahardd y 

cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod. 

(12.10)   

7 Bil Deddfau Trethi Cymru etc. (Pŵer i Addasu): Trafod y 

dystiolaeth 

(12.10-12.20)   

8 Bil Addysg Drydyddol ac Ymchwil (Cymru): Trafod yr adroddiad 

drafft 

(12.20-12.30) (Tudalennau 73 - 103)  

Dogfennau ategol: 

FIN(6)-05-22 P5 – Adroddiad drafft 



 

 

Cofnodion cryno - Y Pwyllgor Cyllid 

Lleoliad: 

Fideogynhadledd drwy Zoom 

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 19 Ionawr 2022 

Amser: 09.30 - 12.31

Gellir gwylio’r cyfarfod ar Senedd TV yn: 

http://senedd.tv/cy/12578 

O bell 
------ 

Yn bresennol 

Categori Enwau 

Aelodau o’r Senedd: 

Peredur Owen Griffiths AS (Cadeirydd) 

Mike Hedges AS 

Sam Rowlands AS (yn lle Peter Fox AS) 

Rhianon Passmore AS 

Tystion: 

Sophie Howe, Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol Cymru 

Alex Chapman, Sefydliad Economeg Newydd 

Victoria Winckler, Sefydliad Bevan 

Sara Jones, Consortiwm Manwerthu Cymru 

Suzy Davies, Cynghrair Twristiaeth Cymru 

Ben Cottam, Ffederasiwn Busnesau Bach 

Leighton Jenkins, CBI Cymru 

Staff y Pwyllgor: 

Owain Roberts (Clerc) 

Leanne Hatcher (Ail Glerc) 

Georgina Owen (Ail Glerc) 

Mike Lewis (Dirprwy Glerc) 

Owen Holzinger (Ymchwilydd) 

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2

http://senedd.tv/
http://senedd.tv/cy/12578


 

 

Christian Tipples (Ymchwilydd) 

Owain Davies (Ymchwilydd) 

 

Yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 34.19, mae’r Cadeirydd wedi penderfynu bod y 

cyhoedd wedi eu gwahardd o gyfarfod y Pwyllgor er mwyn diogelu iechyd 

y cyhoedd. Caiff y cyfarfod hwn ei ddarlledu'n fyw ar www.senedd.tv 

Rhag-gyfarfod preifat - Anffurfiol (09.15-09.30) 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau  

1.1 Croesawodd y Cadeirydd yr Aelodau i gyfarfod rhithwir y Pwyllgor Cyllid. 

 

1.2 Cafwyd ymddiheuriadau gan Peter Fox AS. Dirprwyodd Sam Rowlands AS ar ei ran. 

2 Papur(au) i'w nodi  

2.1 Cafodd y papurau eu nodi. 

2.1 PTN 1 - Llythyr gan y Pwyllgor Busnes at Gadeiryddion Pwyllgorau - Adolygiad o 

amserlen y pwyllgorau a chylchoedd gwaith y pwyllgorau - 7 Ionawr 2022  

2.2 PTN 2 - Craffu ar Gyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2022-23: Tystiolaeth 

ysgrifenedig gan y cerddwyr Cymru - Ionawr 2022  

3 Craffu ar Gyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2022-23: Sesiwn 

dystiolaeth 5  

3.1 Clywodd y Pwyllgor dystiolaeth ar Gyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2022-23 

gan y tystion a ganlyn: Sophie Howe, Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru; ac 

Alex Chapman, Uwch Ymchwilydd, New Economics Foundation. 

Tudalen y pecyn 2



 

 

Egwyl (10.15-10.25) 

4 Craffu ar Gyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2022-23: Sesiwn 

dystiolaeth 6  

4.1 Clywodd y Pwyllgor dystiolaeth gan Victoria Winckler, Cyfarwyddwr Sefydliad 

Bevan, ar Gyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2022-23. 

Egwyl (11.10-11.20) 

5 Craffu ar Gyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2022-23: Sesiwn 

dystiolaeth 7  

5.1 Clywodd y Pwyllgor dystiolaeth ar Gyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2022-23 

gan y tystion a ganlyn: Sara Jones, Pennaeth Consortiwm Manwerthu Cymru; Suzy 

Davies, Cadeirydd Cynghrair Twristiaeth Cymru; Ben Cottam, Pennaeth Cymru, 

Ffederasiwn y Busnesau Bach (FSB Cymru); a Leighton Jenkins, Pennaeth Polisi – Cymru, 

CBI Cymru. 

6 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42(ix) i benderfynu gwahardd y 

cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod hwn.  

6.1 Derbyniwyd y cynnig. 

7 Craffu ar Gyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2022-23: Trafod y 

dystiolaeth  

7.1 Trafododd y Pwyllgor y dystiolaeth a ddaeth i law. 

Tudalen y pecyn 3



 

 

Cofnodion cryno - Y Pwyllgor Cyllid 

Lleoliad: 

Fideogynhadledd drwy Zoom 

Dyddiad: Dydd Gwener, 21 Ionawr 2022 

Amser: 09.30 - 12.50

Gellir gwylio’r cyfarfod ar Senedd TV yn: 

http://senedd.tv/cy/12720 

O bell 
------ 

Yn bresennol 

Categori Enwau 

Aelodau o’r Senedd: 

Peredur Owen Griffiths AS (Cadeirydd) 

Mike Hedges AS 

Rhianon Passmore AS 

Gareth Davies AS (yn lle Peter Fox AS) 

Tystion: 

Rebecca Evans AS, Y Gweinidog Cyllid a Llywodraeth Leol 

Andrew Jeffreys, Dirprwy Gyfarwyddwr, Buddsoddi Cyfalaf 

Strategol, Llywodraeth Cymru 

Staff y Pwyllgor: 

Owain Roberts (Clerc) 

Leanne Hatcher (Ail Glerc) 

Georgina Owen (Ail Glerc) 

Mike Lewis (Dirprwy Glerc) 

Martin Jennings (Ymchwilydd) 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 4

http://senedd.tv/
http://senedd.tv/cy/12720


 

 

Yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 34.19, mae’r Cadeirydd wedi penderfynu 

gwahardd y cyhoedd o gyfarfod y Pwyllgor er mwyn diogelu iechyd y 

cyhoedd. Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei ddarlledu'n fyw ar www.senedd.tv 

Rhag-gyfarfod preifat – anffurfiol (09.15-09.30) 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau  

1.1 Croesawodd y Cadeirydd yr Aelodau i gyfarfod rhithwir y Pwyllgor Cyllid. 

 

1.2 Cafwyd ymddiheuriadau gan Peter Fox AS. Dirprwyodd Gareth Davies AS ar ei ran. 

2 Papurau i'w nodi  

2.1. Cafodd y papurau eu nodi. 

2.1 PTN 1 - Craffu ar Gyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2022-23: Tystiolaeth 

ysgrifenedig gan Cyswllt Amgylchedd Cymru - Ionawr 2022  

2.2 PTN 2 - Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Cyllid a Llywodraeth Leol at y Llywydd: 

Rheoliadau Ardrethu Annomestig (Lluosydd) (Cymru) 2022 - 18 Ionawr 2022  

2.3 PTN 3 - Craffu ar Gyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2022-23: Gwybodaeth 

Ychwanegol - Cynghrair Twristiaeth Cymru - Ionwar 2022  

3 Craffu ar Gyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2022-23: Sesiwn 

dystiolaeth 8  

3.1 Clywodd y Pwyllgor dystiolaeth ar Gyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2022-23 

gan y tystion a ganlyn: Rebecca Evans AS, y Gweinidog Cyllid a Llywodraeth Leol; ac 

Andrew Jeffreys, Cyfarwyddwr y Trysorlys. 

 

3.2 Cytunodd y Gweinidog i ddarparu’r eitemau a ganlyn i’r Pwyllgor:  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 5



 

 

 nodyn ar y grŵp olynol a fydd yn disodli Grŵp Cynghorol y Gyllideb ar 

Gydraddoldeb (BAGE); 

 nodyn ar gyfalaf trafodion ariannol; a 

 nodyn ar gymorth busnes mewn perthynas â seilwaith digidol a datblygu sgiliau 

digidol, yn enwedig ar gyfer busnesau bach. 

4 Trafod Rheoliadau Treth Gwarediadau Tirlenwi (Cyfraddau Treth) 

(Cymru) (Diwygio) 2021  

4.1 Clywodd y Pwyllgor dystiolaeth gan y tystion a ganlyn ar Reoliadau Treth 

Gwarediadau Tirlenwi (Cyfraddau Treth) (Cymru) (Diwygio) 2021: Rebecca Evans AS, y 

Gweinidog Cyllid a Llywodraeth Leol; ac Andrew Jeffreys, Cyfarwyddwr y Trysorlys. 

5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 (ix) i benderfynu gwahardd y 

cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod hwn a'r cyfarfod ar 28 Ionawr 2022.  

5.1 Derbyniwyd y cynnig. 

6 Craffu ar Gyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2022-23: Trafod y 

dystiolaeth  

6.1 Trafododd y Pwyllgor y dystiolaeth a ddaeth i law. 

7 Ceisiadau o ran Cyllideb Atodol 2021-22 gan Gyrff a Ariennir yn 

Uniongyrchol  

7.1 Bu'r Pwyllgor yn trafod ceisiadau o ran cyllideb atodol gan gyrff a ariennir yn 

uniongyrchol. 

8 Trafod y flaenraglen waith  

8.1 Bu’r Pwyllgor yn trafod ei flaenraglen waith. 

9 Adolygiad y Pwyllgor Busnes o amserlen a chylchoedd gwaith y 

pwyllgorau  

9.1 Bu’r Pwyllgor yn trafod adolygiad y Pwyllgor Busnes o amserlen a chylchoedd 

gwaith y pwyllgorau. 

Tudalen y pecyn 6



Rebecca Evans AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Cyllid a Llywodraeth Leol  
Minister for Finance and Local Government

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre: 
0300 0604400 

Correspondence.Rebecca.Evans@gov.wales 
Gohebiaeth.Rebecca.Evans@llyw.cymru 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Ein cyf/Our ref: RE-652-22 

Peredur Owen Griffiths AS 
Chadeirydd, y Pwyllgor Cyllid 
Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd 
CF99 1NA 

21 Ionawr 2022 

Annwyl Peredur, 

Ysgrifennaf atoch i roi gwybod ichi am gyfarfod Pedairochrog y Gweinidogion Cyllid brys a 
gynhaliwyd ar 12 Ionawr. Bwriad y cyfarfod oedd trafod yr argyfwng costau byw a’r gofynion 
cyllido yn sgil COVID-19 mewn ymateb i’r amrywiolyn Omicron. 

Roeddwn i yn bresennol, ynghyd â Simon Clarke, Aelod o Senedd y DU a Phrif 
Ysgrifennydd y Trysorlys, Conor Murphy, Aelod o’r Cynulliad Deddfwriaethol a Gweinidog 
Cyllid Gogledd Iwerddon a Kate Forbes, Aelod o Senedd yr Alban ac Ysgrifennydd y 
Cabinet dros Gyllid a’r Economi, Llywodraeth yr Alban. 

Yn ystod y cyfarfod, rhennais rai o’r mesurau cefnogi y mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi eu rhoi 
yn eu lle er mwyn mynd i’r afael â’r argyfwng costau byw. Fodd bynnag, amlinellais y ffaith 
bod y rhan fwyaf o’r pwerau a’r adnoddau cyllidol yn nwylo Llywodraeth y DU. Pwysleisiais y 
ffaith bod angen i Lywodraeth y DU wneud mwy er mwyn sicrhau cefnogaeth ar unwaith i 
bobl sydd â biliau a chostau byw cynyddol. Yn ogystal, rhennais syniadau ynglŷn â mynd i’r 
afael â thlodi tanwydd. 

Mewn perthynas â’r eitem ynglŷn â chyllido yn sgil COVID-19, trafodwyd y pwysigrwydd o 
gael sicrwydd ynglŷn â chyllid er mwyn galluogi cynllunio effeithiol. Gofynnais i Brif 
Ysgrifennydd y Trysorlys roi sicrwydd y byddai’r cyllid sydd wedi’i ddyrannu ar gyfer 
cefnogi’r ymateb i COVID-19 yn cael ei roi yn llawn. Gofynnais hefyd am sicrwydd y byddai’r 
arferion arferol yn parhau, lle y gallai dyraniadau cyllid hwyr gael eu cario ymlaen. Yn 
ogystal, codais yr angen i barhau i ystyried y defnydd o’r Cynllun Cadw Swyddi drwy gyfnod 
y Coronafeirws, a’r Cynllun Cymorth Incwm i’r Hunangyflogedig pe byddai amgylchiadau yn 
unrhyw un o’r bedair wlad yn mynnu hynny. 

Roedd diweddariadau gan y Llywodraethau Datganoledig ynghylch ein cylchoedd cyllideb ar 
gyfer 2022-23 yn gyfle i rannu’r blaenoriaethau ar gyfer y flwyddyn sydd i ddod. Amlinellais 
yn benodol ein cynlluniau ar gyfer mynd i’r afael â’r argyfyngau hinsawdd a natur. Amlygais 
yr heriau a gafodd setliad Adolygiad o Wariant y DU ar ein gallu i fuddsoddi mewn seilwaith i 

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee 
FIN(6)-05-22 PTN 1

Tudalen y pecyn 7

Eitem 2.1

mailto:Correspondence.Rebecca.Evans@gov.wales
mailto:Gohebiaeth.Rebecca.Evans@llyw.cymru


fwrw ymlaen â’r gwaith o gyflawni sero net, gan rannu y byddai cyllideb cyfalaf Llywodraeth 
Cymru 11% yn is yn 2023-24 nag eleni. 
 
Manteisiais hefyd ar y cyfle i sicrhau cytundeb Gweinidogol i ganiatáu swyddogion i 
gydweithio er mwyn sicrhau trefniadau effeithiol ar gyfer y Pwyllgor Sefydlog 
Rhyngweinidogol ar Gyllid newydd. Roedd hyn er mwyn sicrhau cytundeb cyn ein cyfarfod 
nesaf a fydd yn gyfarfod cyntaf y Pwyllgor Sefydlog Rhyngweinidogol ar Gyllid o dan yr 
Adolygiad o Gysylltiadau Rhynglywodraethol a gyhoeddwyd yn ddiweddar. 
 
I gloi, cadarnhaodd Prif Ysgrifennydd y Trysorlys y byddai’r Canghellor yn cyflwyno ei 
Ddatganiad y Gwanwyn ochr yn ochr â rhagolwg cyllidol ac economaidd diweddaraf y 
Swyddfa Cyfrifoldeb Cyllidebol ar 23 Mawrth.  
 
Yn dilyn y cyfarfod, cyhoeddodd y Gweinidogion Cyllid Datganoledig ddatganiad ar y cyd i’r 
wasg. Gweinidogion Cyllid yn galw am hyblygrwydd gyda chyllid COVID | LLYW.CYMRU   
 
Yn gywir, 
 

 
 
Rebecca Evans AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Cyllid a Llywodraeth Leol  
Minister for Finance and Local Government 

Tudalen y pecyn 8

https://llyw.cymru/gweinidogion-cyllid-yn-galw-am-hyblygrwydd-gyda-chyllid-covid
https://llyw.cymru/gweinidogion-cyllid-yn-galw-am-hyblygrwydd-gyda-chyllid-covid


Rebecca Evans AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Cyllid a Llywodraeth Leol  
Minister for Finance and Local Government 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre: 
0300 0604400 

 Correspondence.Rebecca.Evans@gov.wales 
Gohebiaeth.Rebecca.Evans@llyw.cymru


Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.  

Ein cyf/Our ref: MA/RE/0094/22 

Peredur Owen Griffiths, AS 
Cadeirydd 
Y Pwyllgor Cyllid 
Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd 
CF99 1SN 

24 Ionawr 2022 

BIL DEDDFAU TRETHI CYMRU etc. (PŴER I ADDASU) 

Annwyl Peredur, 

Diolch am eich llythyr diweddar yn dilyn sesiwn dystiolaeth y Pwyllgor Cyllid ar 22 Rhagfyr 
2021 mewn perthynas â Bil Deddfau Trethi Cymru etc. (Pŵer i Addasu) (“y Bil”) lle’r ydych 
yn gofyn am wybodaeth am y canlynol: 

 Y costau posibl sydd ynghlwm â gweithredu unrhyw is-ddeddfwriaeth a fydd yn codi
yn sgil y Bil, megis diweddaru systemau, ffurflenni, canllawiau a chyfathrebu unrhyw
newidiadau;

 Y costau gwirioneddol sy’n gysylltiedig â gweithredu Rheoliadau Treth Trafodiadau
Tir (Amrywio Dros Dro Gyfraddau a Bandiau ar gyfer Trafodiadau Eiddo Preswyl)
(Cymru) 2020.

Fel y gwyddoch, nod y ddeddfwriaeth hon yw darparu system i alluogi Gweinidogion Cymru 
i ymateb i ddigwyddiadau allanol, gan gynnwys y rhai sy’n effeithio ar gyllideb Cymru – 
amgylchiadau sydd y tu hwnt i’n rheolaeth. Heb y ddeddfwriaeth hon, byddai angen inni 
ganfod ffordd o ymateb o hyd. Yn y rhan fwyaf o senarios, byddai hyn yn debygol o olygu 
ymateb gan ddefnyddio deddfwriaeth frys neu, lle bo’n bosibl, ein pwerau gwneud 
rheoliadau presennol. Byddai’r costau gweithredu’r un fath ni waeth pa system 
ddeddfwriaethol a ddefnyddid i weithredu’r newid hwnnw. Yr opsiwn arall fyddai byw gydag 
effaith y digwyddiad allanol, gan gynnwys gostyngiadau posibl yng nghyllidebau Cymru. Prif 
nod y ddeddfwriaeth hon yw diogelu refeniw Cymru. 

Heb y Bil hwn, mae perygl y byddwn yn wynebu costau ariannol yn y dyfodol os, er 
enghraifft, codir tâl newydd am dreth dir y dreth stamp ac ni allwn ymateb yn gyflym. Er, 

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee 
FIN(6)-05-22 PTN 2

Tudalen y pecyn 9

Eitem 2.2



efallai na fydd hyn yn digwydd yn y dyfodol agos, mae’n sicr yn bosibl yn y blynyddoedd 
nesaf – gan fod trethi trafodiadau tir yn parhau i fod yn fywiog. 
 
Mae swyddogion Trysorlys Cymru, ar y cyd â swyddogion o Awdurdod Cyllid Cymru (ACC), 
wedi ystyried costau gweinyddol posibl unrhyw newidiadau yn y dyfodol – sy’n cynnwys, er 
enghraifft, diweddaru canllawiau a ffurflenni, profi neu ofynion cyfathrebu ychwanegol. Ar 
gyfer y rhan fwyaf o newidiadau, mae’n rhesymol tybio y bydd y costau yn cael eu talu o 
gyllidebau presennol. Fodd bynnag, bydd y costau i ACC yn dibynnu i raddau helaeth ar 
union natur y newid na ellir ei ragweld heddiw gydag unrhyw sicrwydd, a bydd angen 
ystyried y costau hyn fesul achos. 
 
O ran gweithredu Rheoliadau Treth Trafodiadau Tir (Amrywio Dros Dro Gyfraddau a 
Bandiau ar gyfer Trafodiadau Eiddo Preswyl) (Cymru) 2020, ysgwyddodd ACC gostau o 
oddeutu £1,200 ar weithredu’r newidiadau dros dro yng nghyfradd y dreth trafodiadau tir ar 
27 Gorffennaf 2020. Roedd hyn yn cynnwys ffi fechan a dalwyd i’w cyflenwr TG, fodd 
bynnag, gwnaethpwyd y rhan fwyaf o’r newidiadau technegol, gan gynnwys profi, yn fewnol. 
Nid yw’r gost hon yn cynnwys cost isel dychwelyd at y cyfraddau gwreiddiol ar gyfer y dreth 
trafodiadau tir (a ddaeth i rym ar 1 Gorffennaf 2021) na chost amser staff ar ddiweddaru 
canllawiau a chyfathrebiadau ACC. Cafodd y costau hyn eu cynnwys yng ngweithgareddau 
busnes fel arfer. Rhagwelwyd y newidiadau yn eang yn dilyn fy nghyhoeddiad ar 14 
Gorffennaf 2020 ac felly roedd y gofynion a’r costau o ran codi ymwybyddiaeth yn isel. 
 
Rhagwelwyd y gofyniad i wneud newidiadau i gyfraddau’r dreth wrth ddylunio system rheoli 
treth ACC, ac adeiladwyd systemau ymarferol sy’n golygu bod gwneud newidiadau o’r fath 
yn weddol hawdd. Helpodd hyn i gadw’r costau’n isel ar gyfer newidiadau Gorffennaf 2020. 
 

Rwy’n gobeithio y bydd yr wybodaeth hon yn helpu’r Pwyllgor Cyllid yn ei waith o graffu ar y 
Bil, ond os oes angen unrhyw wybodaeth arall arnoch cyn imi ddod ger eich bron unwaith 
eto, mae croeso i chi ysgrifennu ataf. 
 
Yn gywir, 
 

 
 
Rebecca Evans AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Cyllid a Llywodraeth Leol 
Minister for Finance and Local Government 
 
Copi at: Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a’r Cyfansoddiad 

Tudalen y pecyn 10



Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre: 

0300 0604400 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay   Correspondence.Rebecca.Evans@gov.wales 

Caerdydd • Cardiff Gohebiaeth.Rebecca.Evans@llyw.cymru 

CF99 1SN  

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Rebecca Evans AS/MS  

Y Gweinidog Cyllid a Llywodraeth Leol  

Minister for Finance and Local Government

Eich cyf/Your ref  

Ein cyf/Our ref   

Mike Hedges AS, Dwyrain Abertawe 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd 
Caerdydd 
CF99 1SN  

26 Ionawr 2022 

Annwyl Mike 

Yn y Pwyllgor Busnes ddydd Mawrth 18 Ionawr ac yn ystod y Pwyllgor Cyllid ar 21 Ionawr, 

cytunwyd y byddwn yn rhoi diweddariad ysgrifenedig ar ddefnyddio cyfalaf trafodiadau 

ariannol (FT) i gyd-fynd â'r Gyllideb Derfynol, gan gynnwys diweddariad ar y penderfyniadau 

presennol ynghylch defnyddio FT.   

Mae'r cyfyngiadau ar sut y gellir defnyddio cyllidebau FT sydd wedi'u clustnodi, ynghyd â’r 

ffaith mai ychydig iawn o hyblygrwydd a geir i ail-broffilio neu gario cyllidebau drosodd, yn 

parhau i achosi amrywiol heriau wrth reoli cynlluniau FT. Mae hyn yn arbennig o berthnasol 

wrth geisio nodi cynlluniau addas sy'n cyd-fynd â phroffil y gyllideb sydd ar gael. Er gwaethaf 

hyn, rydym yn parhau i ddefnyddio cyfalaf FT yn y ffordd orau bosibl. Ar hyn o bryd, er 

enghraifft, rydym wedi buddsoddi dros £1.7bn mewn amrywiaeth fawr o brosiectau sy'n 

cefnogi ein sector busnes a thai – prosiectau y mae sawl rhan o'n cymdeithas a'n heconomi 

yn cael budd ohonynt. Mae dadansoddiad cryno o'r buddsoddiadau hynny i’w weld yn yr 

Atodiad i'r llythyr hwn.   

Fel y nodwyd eisoes, rwy’n bwriadu gwneud rhagor o ddyraniadau FT yng Nghyllideb Derfynol 

2022-23. Bydd y cyfanswm o £451m o gyllid canlyniadol rydym wedi’i dderbyn oddi wrth 

Lywodraeth y DU ar gyfer y tair blwyddyn ariannol 2022-23, 2023-24 a 2024-25 yn cael ei 

ddefnyddio yn y modd mwyaf buddiol wrth bennu’r dyraniadau hynny. Fodd bynnag, fel yn 

achos ein cyllideb refeniw, o dan y proffil rydym wedi’i dderbyn, ar gyfer dechrau’r cyfnod dan 

sylw y darparwyd y rhan fwyaf o’r cyllid. O ystyried y cymhlethdodau ychwanegol wrth 

ddyrannu FT, nid yw hyn yn adlewyrchu’r realiti o safbwynt y ffordd y mae angen inni 

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee 
FIN(6)-05-22 PTN 3

Tudalen y pecyn 11

Eitem 2.3



ddyrannu’r math hwn o gyllid a’i reoli. Byddwn hefyd yn ceisio manteisio i’r eithaf ar ad-

daliadau i Lywodraeth Cymru y gellir eu hailfuddsoddi cyn bod rhaid ad-dalu Llywodraeth y 

DU. Mae'r broses o nodi'r dyraniadau ychwanegol hyn ar y gweill a bydd y canlyniad i’w weld 

yn y Gyllideb Derfynol.   

  

Mae cyfanswm yr ad-daliadau o fuddsoddiadau cynlluniau FT i gronfeydd wrth gefn 

Llywodraeth Cymru yn £79m ar hyn o bryd ac mae'n cynnwys £60m o ad-daliadau cynnar o'r 

cynllun H2B sydd wedi'i ailfuddsoddi. Mae’r sefyllfa yn ystod y flwyddyn yn amodol ar gael ei 

diweddaru yn yr ail gyllideb atodol.  

 

Bydd ad-daliadau sy'n ddyledus i Lywodraeth Cymru yn ystod y tair blwyddyn ariannol nesaf 

yn cael eu cynnwys yng Nghyllideb Derfynol 2022-23.  

  

O ran cymhwysedd cwmnïau cydweithredol i gael cyllid FT, gallaf ddweud eu bod yn gymwys 

fel endidau y tu allan i ffiniau cyllideb y llywodraeth ganolog a llywodraeth leol.  

  

Rwy'n anfon copi o'r llythyr hwn at Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyllid.  

  

  

Yn gywir  

  

  
  

Rebecca Evans AS/MS  

Y Gweinidog Cyllid a Llywodraeth Leol   

Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government  

   

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Tudalen y pecyn 12



 

 Dyrannu Cyfalaf Trafodiadau Ariannol o 2013-14 i 2021-221  

  

   £m  

Cymorth i Brynu - Cymru – Helpu pobl sy'n prynu tŷ sy’n 

gymwys i brynu tŷ newydd ei adeiladu gyda morgais benthyciad 

isel mewn cymhariaeth â gwerth a rhoi hwb i'r diwydiant 

adeiladu.  

673  

Banc Datblygu Cymru – Cronfeydd buddsoddi i roi mynediad i 

gyllid i Fusnesau Bach a Chanolig (BBaCh), cefnogi twf 

busnesau, hybu allforion a chreu/diogelu swyddi. Mae'n 

cynnwys cyllid ar gyfer twristiaeth, achub ac ailstrwythuro, 

busnesau micro, y Gronfa Cyd-fuddsoddi Angylion, eiddo 

masnachol, buddsoddiad hyblyg, gwyddorau bywyd etc.  

635  

Y Cynllun Tir ar gyfer Tai – Darparu benthyciadau i 

Landlordiaid Cymdeithasol Cofrestredig ar gyfer caffael 

safleoedd er mwyn datblygu cynlluniau tai fforddiadwy yn 

gyflymach.  

82  

Mentrau Datblygu Economaidd – Cyllid sy'n cefnogi twf 

economaidd yng Nghymru  
62  

Cronfeydd Datblygu Eiddo a'r Sector Eiddo – Helpu i 

adeiladu tai, a mannau masnachol a diwydiannol newydd.  
9  

Maes Awyr Caerdydd a'r Diwydiant Hedfan – Cynyddu 

potensial masnachol y diwydiant hedfan yng Nghymru a gwella 

datblygiad llwybrau teithio.   

59  

Benthyciadau Tai a Landlordiaid Cymdeithasol Cofrestredig 

– Cefnogi'r gwaith o gyflawni 20,000 o ymrwymiadau o ran tai 

a’r ddarpariaeth tai, gan gynnwys datblygiadau arloesol newydd  

97  

Twf Gwyrdd Cymru a Seilwaith Gwyrdd – Cefnogi sector ynni 

adnewyddadwy Cymru a chynyddu a chyflymu prosiectau sy'n 

darparu buddsoddiad gwyrdd yng Nghymru.  

17  

Benthyciadau Canol Trefi a Chronfeydd Adfywio – 

Cynorthwyo i ddarparu dyfodol cynaliadwy ar gyfer safleoedd ac 

eiddo gwag a’r rheini nad ydynt yn cael defnydd digonol, gan 

gefnogi canol trefi llewyrchus llawn addewid wrth wneud hynny.   

47  

                                            
1 Mae'r ffigurau wedi'u talgrynnu i'r miliwn agosaf, yn unol â'r wybodaeth fonitro ddiweddaraf 

gan adrannau ac nid ydynt yn cynnwys ad-daliadau sy'n ddyledus yn ôl i'r gronfa ganolog. 

Mae ffigurau 2021-22 sydd wedi’u cynnwys yn amodol ar gael eu haddasu yn yr 2il Gyllideb 

atodol a’r archwiliad o'r sefyllfa derfynol o safbwynt alldro. Mae’r ffigurau yn cynnwys 

ailgylchu’r ad-daliad cynnar o £60m.  

  
Tudalen y pecyn 13



Addysg – Cefnogi datblygiad campws AB newydd yn Academi 

Gwyddoniaeth, Technoleg, Peirianneg, y Celfyddydau a 

Mathemateg (STEAM) Aberdâr a Phen-y-bont ar Ogwr  

15  

 

Ardal Adfywio Strategol Ynys y Bari - ffordd gyswllt –

Cyflymu’r gwaith o ddarparu llwybr trafnidiaeth allweddol fel rhan 

o'n rhaglen adfywio.   

2  

Cynllun Cyfalaf Benthyg ar gyfer Cyfleusterau Chwaraeon a 

Hamdden – Gwella cyfleusterau drwy ddull buddsoddi i arbed, 

cynyddu cyfranogiad mewn chwaraeon a gweithgarwch corfforol 

a chyfrannu at well canlyniadau iechyd.  

2  

Cronfa Benthyciadau Asedau Cymunedol – benthyciadau ar 

gyfer sefydliadau'r sector gwirfoddol sy'n ceisio ymgymryd ag 

asedau cymunedol.  

3  

Trawsnewid Cerbydau Trydan – Cymorth ar gyfer prynu 

cerbydau allyriadau isel.   
12  

Undebau Credyd – benthyciadau isradd i gefnogi 

cydymffurfiaeth â chymarebau cyfalaf i asedau gorfodol.  
3  

Benthyciadau diogelwch adeiladau – Helpu i gynnal a gwella 

ansawdd y stoc dai yng Nghymru a chaniatáu i breswylwyr, 

lesddeiliaid a thenantiaid deimlo'n fwy diogel yn eu cartrefi.  

12  

Model Buddsoddi Cydfuddiannol – Cefnogi buddsoddiad 

mewn seilwaith addysg a thrafnidiaeth.  
12  

      

Cyfanswm  1,742  

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

Tudalen y pecyn 14



The UK’s independent public spending 
watchdog 

Comptroller and Auditor General 

Gareth Davies 

Switchboard 

Email 

+44 (0)20 7798 7777

Gareth.Davies@nao.org.uk 

Peredur Owen Griffiths MS 
Chair, Finance Committee 
Welsh Parliament 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff 
CF99 1SN 

Email: SeneddFinance@senedd.wales 

Dear Peredur, 

Date 21 January 2022 

ADMINISTRATION OF WELSH INCOME TAX 2020-21 

157-197 Buckingham Palace Road, Victoria, London SW1W 9SP

020 7798 7000   www.nao.org.uk
Cert No. 8835 

ISO 14001

I am pleased to be able to share with you a copy of my report on the administration of Welsh income tax for 
2020-21, which has been published today. 

I would be very happy to discuss the findings of my report with you and other members of the Committee, 
should you find this useful. 

Yours sincerely, 

GARETH DAVIES 

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee 
FIN(6)-05-22 PTN 4

Tudalen y pecyn 15

Eitem 2.4

mailto:Gareth.Davies@nao.org.uk
mailto:SeneddFinance@senedd.wales


Adroddiad y Swyddfa Archwilio Genedlaethol: Gweinyddu cyfraddau treth incwm 
Cymru 2020-21 – Ionawr 2022 (PDF, 461KB) 

National Audit Office report: Administration of Welsh rates of income tax 2020-21 – 
January 2022 (PDF, 348KB) 

Tudalen y pecyn 16

https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/Administration-of-Welsh-rates-of-income-tax-2020-21-Welsh-Language.pdf
https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/Administration-of-Welsh-rates-of-income-tax-2020-21-Welsh-Language.pdf
https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/Administration-of-Welsh-rates-of-income-tax-2020-21.pdf
https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/Administration-of-Welsh-rates-of-income-tax-2020-21.pdf


30 Monck Street 
London SW1P 2AP 

T: +44 (0)20 7340 0550 
E: post@ciot.org.uk 

Member of CFE (Tax Advisers Europe) Registered as a charity No. 1037771 www.tax.org.uk 

Welsh Tax Acts etc. (Power to Modify) Bill 

Finance Committee of the Senedd Cymru (Welsh Parliament) inquiry  

Response by the Chartered Institute of Taxation and our Low Incomes Tax Reform Group 

1  Introduction 

1.1  The Chartered Institute of Taxation (CIOT) and its Low Incomes Tax Reform Group (LITRG) respond 
jointly to the Finance Committee’s inquiry into the general principles of the Welsh Tax Acts etc 
(Power to Modify) Bill.  

1.2  Our stated objectives for the tax system include: 

• A legislative process that translates policy intentions into statute accurately and effectively,
without unintended consequences.

• A fair balance between the powers of tax collectors and the rights of taxpayers (both
represented and unrepresented).

• Responsive and competent tax administration, with a minimum of bureaucracy.

1.3  We have considered the following in our response: 

• The general principles of the Bill and the need for legislation;
• The appropriateness of the powers in the Bill for Welsh Ministers to make subordinate

legislation as set out in Chapter 5 of Part 1 of the Explanatory Memorandum
• Any potential barriers to the implementation of these provisions and whether the Bill takes

account of them
• Whether there are any unintended consequences arising from the Bill

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee 
FIN(6)-05-22 P1

Tudalen y pecyn 17

Eitem 3



Finance Committee of the Senedd Cymru (Welsh Parliament) inquiry: CIOT response 21 January 2022 
 

 
Technical/documents/subsfinal/WTC/2022  2 

 

2  The general principles of the Bill and the need for legislation 

2.1  As we said in our response to the Welsh government’s consultation: Tax Devolution in Wales – 
Enabling changes to the Welsh Tax Acts1, our starting point is that tax law should be set out in 
primary legislation particularly in so far as it relates to the exercise of tax powers setting out what 
is subject to tax and imposing burdens on taxpayers. Secondary legislation should ideally be used 
only for administrative matters. This is to ensure proper scrutiny of legislation that results in the 
imposition of some kind of burden (compliance or financial) on taxpayers. 

2.2  However, we recognise the challenges in introducing primary legislation to implement tax changes 
via an annual Welsh finance bill as currently the volume of legislative change required is probably 
insufficient to justify an annual finance bill process in Wales. There are however good reasons to 
keep this option under review. The legislative process should reflect the significance of the 
devolved tax system in raising revenue in Wales. The case for an annual Welsh finance bill will 
strengthen if devolved taxes provide an increased share of revenues to fund wider policy areas 
dealt with by the Welsh Parliament. 

2.3  We consider there is currently a good case for a mechanism to enable amendments to be made in 
the manner set out in the Bill on the basis the powers provide a reasonable balance between the 
competing needs of speed, scrutiny and responsiveness at this point in the development of Welsh 
devolved taxes. We suggest consideration is given to a legislative sunset clause  or mandatory re-
authorisation to ensure they remain appropriate.  

2.4  We note the reference in the Explanatory Memorandum at paragraph 11 (In addition, review of 
this legislation, and the regulations made using it, will be undertaken as part of ongoing 
consideration of the feasibility and appropriateness of a future annual Welsh Finance Bill 
procedure.). We welcome that commitment. Extensive use of the regulatory powers to amend the 
Welsh devolved taxes is likely to be a strong indicator of the need to re-consider whether the 
regulatory powers remain appropriate. 

2.5  Where regulations made under the powers in the Bill make complex amendments we think, it 
should be the norm to publish (ideally simultaneously) a consolidated version of the law as 
amended. This would greatly aid transparency and comprehensibility of the law, particularly 
where the amendments made are very complex, or are due to come into force at short notice. We 
understand that the Welsh Tax Acts published on the legislation.gov.uk website (and possibly Law 
Wales in the future) will be updated to reflect the current legislation in force following approval 
of a regulation by the Senedd.  

 
1 https://www.tax.org.uk/ref694  

• the appropriateness of section 3 (Policy statement: regulations under section 1 that have 
retrospective effect) and the draft policy statement (PDF, 329KB) published alongside the 
Bill. 

Tudalen y pecyn 18

https://senedd.wales/media/4n0cwczi/pri-ld14763-em-e.pdf
https://www.tax.org.uk/ref694
https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s120709/Draft%20statement%20on%20retrospection%20PDF,%20329KB.pdf


Finance Committee of the Senedd Cymru (Welsh Parliament) inquiry: CIOT response 21 January 2022 
 

 
Technical/documents/subsfinal/WTC/2022  3 

 

3  The appropriateness of the powers in the Bill for Welsh Ministers to make subordinate legislation 
as set out in Chapter 5 of Part 1 of the Explanatory Memorandum 

3.1  The Bill provides Welsh Ministers with a power to make changes, by means of regulations, to the 
Welsh Tax Acts and regulations made under those Acts, if the Welsh Ministers consider that it is 
necessary or appropriate to make those changes  for any of the four purposes specified in the Bill. 
The regulations can be made either under the draft affirmative procedure (the regulations can only 
come into effect once the Senedd has approved the making of them), or where the Welsh Ministers 
are of the opinion that, by reason of urgency, it is necessary, under the made affirmative procedure 
(the regulations come into force as soon as the regulations are made, whilst awaiting Senedd 
approval).  

The four purposes are:  

(a) ensuring that landfill disposals tax or land transaction tax is not imposed where to do so would 
be incompatible with any international obligations;  

(b) protecting against tax avoidance in relation to landfill disposals tax or land transaction tax;  

(c) responding to a change to a predecessor tax that affects, or may affect, the amounts  paid into 
the Welsh Consolidated Fund under section 118(1) of the Government of Wales Act 2006 (c. 32);  

(d) responding to a decision of a court or tribunal that affects, or may affect, the operation of any 
of the Welsh Tax Acts or regulations made under any of those Acts. 

3.2  We consider the use of the powers in the circumstances described seem reasonable, with the 
caveat that the there is quite a wide discretion particularly in relation to the undefined term ‘tax 
avoidance’. We note the Minister’s comments in the evidence session before the Finance 
Committee at paragraph 210-211 of the transcript2 and the interaction with the existing power to 

 
2  
Para 210 : (Carolyn Thomas MS) Thank you. Just a final question from me regarding the 'to protect against tax avoidance' in 
relation to devolved Welsh taxes—so, why the Bill confers powers on Welsh Ministers to protect against tax avoidance when 
there is already the general anti-avoidance rule enacted in legislation. So, if that legislation already exists, why would this Bill 
confer powers on Welsh Government to protect against tax avoidance? 
Para 211: ( Rebecca Evans, Minister for Finance and Local Government.) So, for both devolved taxes, there is always the risk 
that there will be individual or mass-marketed avoidance activity that Welsh Government and the Welsh Revenue Authority 
might want to stop with immediate effect. That could be because there is a lacuna or gap in the legislation that facilitates the 
avoidance activity or, based on UK experience, a need for clarity to the legislation to make it clear that the law operates in a 
manner that doesn't permit the avoidance activity. So, the general anti-avoidance rule is an important anti-avoidance tool 
available to the WRA to counteract instances of tax avoidance. However, it can only be used after the fact, where a specific 
avoidance scheme has been used to gain a tax advantage, so it doesn't prevent future taxpayers from exploiting the same 
avoidance opportunity in the future, whether intentionally or not. So, the new power would enable Welsh Ministers to change 
the law and close down any perceived opportunities for avoidance before they could become widely exploited. 
Para 212: In many cases, it's desirable to make the change to the legislation to provide greater clarity to stop the marketing of 
avoidance schemes that ultimately the courts find didn't work as the promoters contended. And that sort of change actually 
protects taxpayers from taking part in avoidance schemes that can result in them paying the tax owed and also the fees for the 
advice and services as well, so it would seek to protect Welsh taxpayers as well.  

Tudalen y pecyn 19

https://record.assembly.wales/Committee/12539#A69208
https://record.assembly.wales/Committee/12539#A69208


Finance Committee of the Senedd Cymru (Welsh Parliament) inquiry: CIOT response 21 January 2022 
 

 
Technical/documents/subsfinal/WTC/2022  4 

counteract artificial tax avoidance arrangements under the General Anti-Avoidance Rule3. The 
intention is that the power may be used to close down any perceived opportunities for avoidance 
before they become widely exploited. We recognise the value of acting swiftly to close down 
artificial tax avoidance arrangements thereby helping to protect taxpayers who may otherwise 
participate in avoidance schemes without the full facts and knowledge of the law. We note also the 
SDLT experience where there has been a history of  mass marketed avoidance schemes 
subsequently addressed through primary legislation although this has taken time. As with all four 
purposes it will be essential that the case for using the power in these circumstances is robust, 
based on evidence and subject to scrutiny.  

3.3  There is a tension between introducing a tax change quickly and ensuring the legislation has 
adequate scrutiny such that it is effective. The more complicated the change, the greater the need 
for consultation. In evaluating the tensions between scrutiny and speed, one of these needs may 
outweigh the other depending on the type of legislative change under consideration and, in 
particular, the motivation for that change. 

3.4  We have considered whether there might be a case for extending the purpose in (d) to include a 
change in interpretation by HMRC  in relation to a predecessor tax that leads to  a need to clarify 
the interpretation of a provision in the devolved taxes. However, on balance such changes are more 
appropriately addressed through existing powers or where necessary through primary legislation.  

3.5  We also considered whether there might be advantages in a specific commitment to raising the 
intended use of the powers at the Minister’s Tax Engagement Group or through a dedicated 
stakeholder forum before proceeding to the formal stages and, where it is not possible to do so (for 
example, due to forestalling or sensitivities), the restraints on so doing should be noted explicitly in 
the Explanatory Memorandum when introducing the proposed change to the Senedd. However, 
we are comforted by the comments at paragraph 4.15 of the Explanatory Memorandum in relation 
to consultation on new measures.  

In many cases the Welsh Ministers will not invite comment on the intention to legislate using the 
powers provided by the Bill, the nature of the change or on its timing prior to making regulations. 
However, subject to the risk of forestalling, consideration will be given on a case by case basis to 
engaging informally, and in confidence, with key stakeholders, before and during the drafting of 
regulations to establish whether the legislation will achieve its objective. In particular, where the 
regulations are to respond to changes made by the UK government to a predecessor tax, or the 
coming  force date does not need to be immediate, there may be opportunities for engagement. 

Consideration might be given to publishing the nature of any informal consultation after the 
regulations come into force in the interests of transparency.  

3.6  The Bill provides that ministers determine whether ‘urgency’ requires the made affirmative 
procedure. Paragraph 3.28 of the Explanatory Memorandum states:  

 
3 Tax Collection and Management (Wales) Act 2016 section 81A et seq. 

Tudalen y pecyn 20



Finance Committee of the Senedd Cymru (Welsh Parliament) inquiry: CIOT response 21 January 2022 
 

 
Technical/documents/subsfinal/WTC/2022  5 

However, the Welsh Ministers may use the made affirmative procedure where they consider it 
necessary by reason of urgency (for example where the regulations will need to have effect 
immediately or shortly thereafter, and so before a draft affirmative set of regulations could be 
approved by the Senedd). This will ensure that changes may, where appropriate, come into force as 
soon as the regulations are made, whilst awaiting Senedd approval. The rules in relation to the 
making and approval of made affirmative 11 regulations are set out in subsections 4(3) to (7). Made 
affirmative regulations must receive approval within a maximum period of 60 Senedd days to enable 
those regulations to remain in effect. The rationale to introduce a change through new made 
affirmative regulations will be set out in the Explanatory Memorandum to those regulations. 

The use of the made affirmative procedure may limit scrutiny and therefore the opportunity to 
identify unintended consequences of the measure. It would be helpful to explore in what 
circumstances ministers envisage they may consider invoking this procedure.  

3.7  A lack of scrutiny places more weight on the importance of effective and routine post-legislative 
review of whether substantive measures are achieving their objectives at an acceptable cost, and 
the Senedd should hold the Welsh government to account accordingly. 

 

4  Any potential barriers to the implementation of these provisions and whether the Bill takes 
account of them 

4.1  In terms of procedure, we note that secondary legislation once laid, cannot generally be amended. 
Thus, if the draft that is laid is defective, even in a minor way, it cannot be altered to ensure that it 
is correct – secondary legislation can generally only stand or fall as drafted. This is probably not a 
major barrier as the consequence of any defect would be a short delay while a new instrument is 
laid.  

 

5  The appropriateness of section 3 (Policy statement: regulations under section 1 that have 
retrospective effect) and the draft policy statement (PDF, 329KB) published alongside the Bill 

5.1  There is clearly a case for retrospection to correct an obvious anomaly that is harming taxpayers or 
to correct deficiencies that emerge. For example in Scotland amendments were made to LBTT, 
initially  through secondary legislation prospectively and subsequently with retrospective effect 
through primary legislation,  to correct the ADS position for couples where the title to the former 
main residence is in the sole name of one of the couple and the couple then jointly buy a new main 
residence prior to selling their current main residence. There was some inevitable delay before 
Scottish parliamentary time could be found to pass primary legislation. The ability to correct 
anomalies retrospectively through the Bill’s powers will ensure inequities for the taxpayer’s are 
alleviated more quickly.  

5.2  In addition to retrospective changes that benefit the taxpayer, the  Explanatory Memorandum and 
the draft policy statement clearly envisage circumstances where regulations increase a taxpayer’s 

Tudalen y pecyn 21

https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s120709/Draft%20statement%20on%20retrospection%20PDF,%20329KB.pdf


Finance Committee of the Senedd Cymru (Welsh Parliament) inquiry: CIOT response 21 January 2022 
 

 
Technical/documents/subsfinal/WTC/2022  6 

liability (subject to compatibility with the European Convention on Human Rights) including where 
avoidance needs to be ‘halted’ or where a court decision means the legislation may not be 
interpreted as intended by the Senedd when it was enacted. 

We observe that retrospection has also been used at Westminster to reconfirm previously 
established interpretations of the law that were shared across a whole marketplace or section of 
the population, but which the courts had unexpectedly found to be erroneous.  

Similarly the Westminster government has used retrospection to combat organised tax avoidance, 
the least controversial circumstances have been when an announcement is made that legislation 
would be amended in the next Finance Bill backdated to the date of announcement: the 
announcement serves to avoid taxpayers developing expectations of the more favourable tax 
treatment sought by the avoidance scheme.  

We note the regulatory power in paragraph 3(1)(c) of the Bill to make a provision that has 
retrospective effect is not limited in its effect to the date of a prior announcement.  

5.3  The draft policy statement states that a change taking effect from a date earlier than the date of 
making is intended to be used in exceptional circumstances only. We agree that retrospective 
legislation that imposes or increases a tax charge on income earned, gains realised or transactions 
concluded at a time before the legislation was announced should be used with extreme care and 
justified in detail. 

5.4  The draft policy statement refers to ‘retrospection’. There are broadly two ways in which tax 
legislation can act on past events, often referred to as ‘retrospective’ and ‘retroactive’ although the 
meaning ascribed to these terms is not consistent. Tax practitioners, at least in the UK would usually 
understand retrospective legislation to mean legislation imposes (or reduces) a tax charge on 
income earned, gains realised or transactions concluded at a time before the legislation was 
announced. Retroactive legislation is usually taken to mean legislation that imposes a tax charge 
on income arising or a gain realised after the date when the legislation enters into force ( perhaps 
a deemed gain), but that income or gain arises from transactions entered into (or at least 
commenced) before the legislation. The powers under the Bill could be used to effect changes in 
either sense irrespective of the terminology used. A key point from our perspective is that the 
Welsh government recognises and gives due weight to taxpayers’ legitimate expectations in this 
context.  

5.5  The ‘Spotlight’ system4 is often used by HMRC to identify avoidance schemes that are contrary to 
the policy intent. We suggest that where the WRA identifies artificial avoidance activity, a similar 
approach should be considered to give early warning to taxpayers that such schemes are not 
effective or where the WRA becomes aware that a particular approach is being marketed to 
taxpayers that does not reflect the WRA’s interpretation of legislation and case law. The aim would 
be to protect taxpayers from developing expectations of the more favourable tax treatment. A 
good example of ‘pointers’ that might be helpful to taxpayers is the article published on the CIOT 

 
4 https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/tax-avoidance-schemes-currently-in-the-spotlight-number-20-onwards  

Tudalen y pecyn 22

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/tax-avoidance-schemes-currently-in-the-spotlight-number-20-onwards


Finance Committee of the Senedd Cymru (Welsh Parliament) inquiry: CIOT response 21 January 2022 
 

 
Technical/documents/subsfinal/WTC/2022  7 

blog at https://www.tax.org.uk/explaining-subsidiary-dwellings-guidance-for-welsh-properties 
and (for SDLT) https://www.tax.org.uk/stamp-duty-refunds-too-good-to-be-true.  

 

6  Acknowledgement of submission 

6.1  We would be grateful if you could acknowledge safe receipt of this submission, and ensure that the 
Chartered Institute of Taxation is included in the List of Respondents when any outcome of the 
consultation is published. 

 

7  About us 

7.1  The CIOT is an educational charity, promoting education and study of the administration and 
practice of taxation. One of our key aims is to work for a better, more efficient, tax system for all 
affected by it – taxpayers, their advisers and the authorities. Our comments and recommendations 
on tax issues are made solely in order to achieve this aim; we are a non-party-political organisation. 

7.2  The CIOT’s work covers all aspects of taxation, including direct and indirect taxes and duties. 
Through our Low Incomes Tax Reform Group (LITRG), the CIOT has a particular focus on improving 
the tax system, including tax credits and benefits, for the unrepresented taxpayer. 

7.3  The CIOT draws on our members’ experience in private practice, commerce and industry, 
government and academia to improve tax administration and propose and explain how tax policy 
objectives can most effectively be achieved. We also link to, and draw on, similar leading 
professional tax bodies in other countries.  

7.4  Our members have the practising title of ‘Chartered Tax Adviser’ and the designatory letters ‘CTA’, 
to represent the leading tax qualification.  

7.5  The Low Incomes Tax Reform Group is an initiative of the Chartered Institute of Taxation to give a 
voice to the unrepresented. Since 1998 LITRG has been working to improve the policy and 
processes of the tax, tax credits and associated welfare systems for the benefit of those on low 
incomes. Everything we do is aimed at improving the tax and benefits experience of low income 
workers, pensioners, migrants, students, disabled people and carers. 

7.6  LITRG works extensively with HM Revenue and Customs and other government departments, 
commenting on proposals and putting forward our own ideas for improving the system. Too often 
the tax and welfare laws and administrative systems are not designed with the low-income user in 
mind and this often makes life difficult for those we try to help. 

  

The Chartered Institute of Taxation 

21 January 2022 

Tudalen y pecyn 23

https://www.tax.org.uk/explaining-subsidiary-dwellings-guidance-for-welsh-properties
https://www.tax.org.uk/stamp-duty-refunds-too-good-to-be-true


Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 24

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



ICAEW   

Chartered Accountants’ Hall  Moorgate Place  London  EC2R 6EA  UK 
T +44 (0)20 7920 8100  F +44 (0)20 7920 0547    icaew.com 

The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW) incorporated by Royal Charter (RC000246) 
Registered office: Chartered Accountants’ Hall  Moorgate Place  London  EC2R 6EA  UK 

ICAEW 

REPRESENTATION 3/22 

WELSH TAX ACTS ETC. (POWER TO MODIFY) 
BILL 2022 

Issued 26 January 2022  

Set out in the attached representation are comments made by ICAEW on the Welsh Tax Acts Etc. 

(Power to Modify) Bill 2022 (the Bill). These comments include: 

• comments by ICAEW on specific questions raised by the secretariat of the Welsh

Government’s Finance Committee in advance of on oral evidence session on 2

February 2022; and

• specific comments on the draft Bill.

This response of 26 January 2022 has been prepared by the ICAEW Tax Faculty. Internationally 
recognised as a source of expertise, the ICAEW Tax Faculty is a leading authority on taxation and 
is the voice of tax for ICAEW. It is responsible for making all submissions to the tax authorities on 
behalf of ICAEW, drawing upon the knowledge and experience of ICAEW’s membership. The Tax 
Faculty’s work is directly supported by over 130 active members, many of them well-known names 
in the tax world, who work across the complete spectrum of tax, both in practice and in business. 
ICAEW is a world-leading professional body established under a Royal Charter to serve the public 
interest. In pursuit of its vision of a world of strong economies, ICAEW works with governments, 
regulators and businesses and it leads, connects, supports and regulates more than 157,800 
chartered accountant members in over 147 countries. ICAEW members work in all types of private 
and public organisations, including public practice firms, and are trained to provide clarity and 
rigour and apply the highest professional, technical and ethical standards. 

© ICAEW 2022 
All rights reserved. 
This document may be reproduced without specific permission, in whole or part, free of charge and in any format or medium, subject to 
the conditions that: 
• it is appropriately attributed, replicated accurately and is not used in a misleading context;
• the source of the extract or document is acknowledged and the title and ICAEW reference number are quoted.
Where third-party copyright material has been identified application for permission must be made to the copyright holder.
For more information, please contact: representations@icaew.com

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee 
FIN(6)-05-22 P2

Tudalen y pecyn 37

Eitem 4



ICAEW REPRESENTATION 105/21 RELIANCE ON ICAEW FIRMS UNDERTAKING TAX WORK 
 

© ICAEW 20212  2 

INTRODUCTION 

1. Set out below are comments made by ICAEW in relation to the Welsh Tax Acts Etc. (Power 

to Modify) Bill 2022 (the Bill). The Bill, and accompanying papers and statements, can be 

found here. Our comments consist of two sections, as follows. 

 

• Comments on specific questions raised by the Committee secretariat in advance of 

on oral evidence session on 2 February 2022. 

 

• Specific comments on the draft Bill. 

 

COMMENTS ON SPECIFIC QUESTIONS RAISED BY THE COMMITTEE SECRETARIAT IN 

ADVANCE OF ON ORAL EVIDENCE SESSION ON 2 FEBRUARY 2022 

 

Whether you agree with the purpose of the Bill 

2. We support the policy purpose behind the Bill. Given that the UK Government continues to 

make changes to the Stamp Duty Land Tax (SDLT) regime, it is clearly important that the 

Welsh Government has the tools needed to be able to react to such changes if they are likely 

to have a significant impact on Land Transaction Tax (LTT).  

 

Strengths and weaknesses of the Bill 

3. The strength of the Bill is it should allow changes to be made quickly to the devolved taxes in 

react to changing external circumstances.  

 

4. The weaknesses of the Bill are that changes will not be made through primary legislation and 

there is a danger of a lack of proper scrutiny of any regulations which will be made under this 

Bill.  

 

5. One of our principles of good tax policy is that tax legislation should be enacted in primary 

legislation rather than secondary legislation. These proposals allow for changes to be made 

by way of secondary legislation, i.e. regulations, which is contrary to our principles. That said, 

we understand the specific difficulties faced by the Welsh Government responding to 

changes made by the UK Government in relation to, for example, SDLT.  

 

6. As we understand it, one of the reasons for this approach is that Wales does not have an 

equivalent Finance Bill procedure for making annual changes to the Welsh Tax Acts. While 

we appreciate that at present such a procedure may not be considered to be necessary 

because annual changes are likely to be few in number, nevertheless we think that 

consideration should be given to having the capability to adopt an annual Finance Bill 

procedure. This would ensure that any changes could be enacted by way of primary 

legislation. It would also ensure that a procedure is in place so that, if and when further tax 

raising powers are devolved to the Welsh Government, it has the necessary mechanism to 

make changes quickly. We understand that similar problems are faced in in relation to 

amending the devolved Scottish Taxes and similar calls have been made for a legislative 

process to allow for such changes to be made.  

 

7. It is important to ensure that all measures are subject to proper and effective scrutiny. A 

weakness of the Bill is the extensive powers given to make changes by way of secondary 

legislation. There is always a danger with a regulation making powers that there is 

insufficient scrutiny of them as compared to that given to primary legislation. This is 

particularly important given that any regulations could contain retrospective powers, although 

Tudalen y pecyn 38

https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=38480


ICAEW REPRESENTATION 105/21 RELIANCE ON ICAEW FIRMS UNDERTAKING TAX WORK 
 

© ICAEW 20212  3 

we recognise that the the accompanying procedures should help to ensure that such powers 

are exercised only in clearly defined circumstances.   

 

Whether the level of delegated powers is appropriate 

8. The level of delegated powers must be proportionate to the problem they seek to solve. We 

appreciate that the Welsh Government needs the ability to respond to changes made to 

SDLT by the UK Government. Further, the ability to react to quickly to identified tax 

avoidance schemes etc and/or unexpected court rulings is understandable.  

 

9. We support reasonable and proportionate measures to address tax avoidance, and 

recognise that LTT, like SDLT, poses particular risks in relation to tax avoidance. Particular 

issues are that LTT is self-assessed and managed on the basis of process now, check later. 

Agents, usually conveyancers/solicitors, will not necessarily be engaged on an on-going 

basis; rather they will be engaged to complete and file the return only. 

 

10. LTT poses a slightly different risk profile as compared to SDLT. On the one hand, the impact 

of LTT tax avoidance is potentially greater than for SDLT given its smaller tax base: on the 

other hand, LTT is far more likely to be charged at lower rates than for SDLT due to lower 

property values, thereby reducing the potential motivation to engage in tax avoidance. In 

practice, however, there is probably not much difference in the risk profile.  

 

11. Nevertheless, we remain concerned about the wide power under these provisions to make 

retrospective changes to the tax rules. Another key principle of a good taxation system is the 

need for certainty. In principle, we believe that the approach adopted to countering tax 

avoidance should be similar to that which is encapsulated in the so-called ‘Rees Rules’ which 

were subject to extensive debate in the UK Parliament in 1978 and which were set out at that 

time as follows: 

 

First, the warning must be precise in form. A mere suggestion that there are vague 

schemes of tax avoidance that must be counted should not suffice.  

 

Secondly, the problem at which the warning has been directed should immediately be 

referred to a committee which I understand exists … composed of members of the 

Inland Revenue and of the accountancy and legal professions … [the committee] 

should to left … to devise the precise legislative measures which should then be 

introduced.  

 

Thirdly, if the committee can hit on appropriate legislative provision, the draft clause … 

should immediately be published in advance of the Finance Bill so that those who are 

likely to be in the field of fire will have a second clear intimation of what to expect.  

 

Fourthly, such a clause must, without fail, be introduced in the following Finance Bill …  

 

12. This doctrine was formulated nearly 44 years ago and we are not sure whether the second of 

the above rules was ever adopted or not but, if it was, it has not operated for many years. 

However, we believe that the fundamental principles behind the Rules remain good, namely 

that any tax changes made should only apply from the date of the announcement, must be 

announced in clear form, must be published in draft and enacted in the next Finance Bill. 

 

13. The approach adopted by the Welsh Government is, in effect, a modified version of the Rees 

rule in that regulations could be announced which would make immediate changes to the 

Tudalen y pecyn 39



ICAEW REPRESENTATION 105/21 RELIANCE ON ICAEW FIRMS UNDERTAKING TAX WORK 
 

© ICAEW 20212  4 

primary legislation, thereby by-passing the need to go through a formal Finance Bill process. 

We can see that this approach might give a higher degree of certainty, provided the 

regulations are approved under the appropriate ratification process.  

 

14. Our main concern is with retrospection and the draft statement on retrospection which is 

included in the bundle of supporting material for the Bill. This procedure should not be used 

to introduce a tax change from a date prior to the date on which it was announced and we 

believe that the draft statement should be clarified to confirm that this is not the intention. If it 

is so intended, there should be a formal confirmation that such an approach would be wholly 

exceptional and that it would be accompanied by a detailed and compelling justification for 

such a procedure.  

 

Whether a similar legislative process has been implemented elsewhere 

15. It would be helpful to compare and contrast the proposed Welsh Government approach to 

that which has been adopted by the Scottish Government to deal with similar circumstances.  

 

16. We have discussed this with colleagues in relation to the devolved taxes in Scotland. We 

understand that Scotland has similar issues to those in Wales – namely there is no obvious 

process to change the devolved taxes. We understand that the problem may be more acute 

in Scotland than in Wales because the Scottish equivalent of SDLT (namely Land and 

Buildings Transaction tax) was changed more extensively when rewritten from SDLT – partly 

due to the need to align it with Scottish land law etc. We also understand that there have 

been a number of Scottish tax Tribunal cases on the two devolved Scottish taxes and that 

some of the questions that have been decided are quite fundamental to the operation of the 

taxes – see the fourth trigger condition in this Bill (namely para 1(1)(d)). 

 

17. We understand that in Scotland there has been a working group that was looking at this and 

which produced an interim report a couple of years ago but not subsequently and there are 

calls to reconvene it. 

 

18. We are not aware of any other similar legislative processes.  

 

Whether the Welsh Government needs additional powers considering the existing powers it 

has to make changes to tax legislation and does it replicate existing powers 

19. The Welsh Government already has the power to change the rates and bands etc by way of 

regulation so there is already a precedent adopted for such an approach. The powers subject 

to this consultation exclude the ability to change rates and bands (see clause 2(3) of the Bill). 

We understand that this approach was adopted because the Welsh Government already has 

a pre-existing power to change these. However, this exclusion serves to complicate these 

provisions and consideration should be given to deleting it.  

 

20. We do not think any further powers should be needed.  

 

Whether the Bill is the right approach to make changes to tax legislation 

21. In broad terms, the measures will allow primary legislation to be overridden by secondary 

legislation in four defined circumstances. Although adopting this approach is not one we 

would advocate under our principles, we appreciate that the Welsh Government does need 

the ability to react quickly in the circumstances outlined.  

 

Whether there are possible scenarios where the proposed approach would not work 

Tudalen y pecyn 40

https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s120709/Draft%20statement%20on%20retrospection%20PDF,%20329KB.pdf


ICAEW REPRESENTATION 105/21 RELIANCE ON ICAEW FIRMS UNDERTAKING TAX WORK 
 

© ICAEW 20212  5 

22. We cannot think of any. However, we would also note that many promoters of tax avoidance 

avoidance schemes appear to operate outside of any oversight (whether by a professional 

body or otherwise) and appear impervious to changes designed to stop their activities. In 

relation to tax avoidance, these particular changes would impact upon the taxpayer who 

entered into a scheme rather than those behind such schemes and who may continue to 

abuse the system. While it is right that measures should be aimed at the taxpayer, the Welsh  

Government should consider whether it has the necessary powers to tackle the promoters of 

egregious tax avoidance schemes.  

 

Whether there are any external events not covered by the four purpose tests 

23. We cannot think of any external events at the current time which would not be covered by the 

four purpose tests. As a general principle, and given our comments above, these powers 

should be used sparingly and only in defined circumstances, so we think that the four tests 

are enough for the time being. We suggest the position is kept under review and. if further 

events are identified, then these could be considered at that stage. We would repeat our 

request that the Welsh Government should consider adopting a Finance Bill type process 

which would allow for necessary tax changes to be made every year.  

 

Whether the approach would enable appropriate scrutiny 

24. The approach adopted should normally allow for appropriate scrutiny although in one of the 

circumstances (namely that in the circumstances in set out in para 4(2)(b) the regulations 

can be made without a draft being laid and approved by the Senedd), it will be effectively 

after the event. We would expect that the power in para 4(2)(b) is only exercised in extremis 

and that, if it is used, a clear and compelling justification is made for it. 

 

Whether the Senedd should have a legislative budget process to enable tax changes to be 

made through primary legislation 

25. See our comments made above. We think that the Senedd should have a legislative budget 

process and that tax changes should ideally be made by way of primary legislation. 

 

How the Bill could impact on Welsh taxpayers and stakeholders 

26. The purpose of the measures is to allow the Welsh Government to make changes at short 

notice if one of four conditions is satisfied. In terms of the four conditions, one of them, 

namely compliance with international obligations, is likely to be a rare occurrence and the 

impact on Welsh taxpayers is likely to be very limited. The other three conditions are much 

more likely to occur and therefore the impact on Welsh taxpayers is likely to be much higher.  

 

SPECIFIC COMMENTS ON THE DRAFT BILL 

 

Clause 2(1)(b) 

27. In principle we do not think that a power to make or extend a penalty should be available by 

way of amending existing primary legislation – such a power should only be made by way of 

primary legislation though a Finance Bill type process. Accordingly, we would welcome 

clarification of the circumstances when this provision might apply and what safeguards will 

be in place to protect taxpayers.  

 

Clause 2(1)(c) 

28. See comments made above about retrospection and that it should not apply to a period 

before any announcement.  

 

Clause 2(1)(3) 
Tudalen y pecyn 41



ICAEW REPRESENTATION 105/21 RELIANCE ON ICAEW FIRMS UNDERTAKING TAX WORK 
 

© ICAEW 20212  6 

29. As noted above, we understand that this is included because the Welsh Government already 

has the power to do this. However, as one would expect to see a specific power to change 

rates and bands included in this provision, including an exclusion in these rules serves 

merely to confuse, especially as there is no cross reference to the existing power. We would 

delete it or put in a specific cross reference so that the reason for this is clear. 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 42



Finance Committee - Welsh Tax Acts 
(Power to Modify) Bill 

A Submission by: 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

January 2022

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee 
FIN(6)-05-22 P3

Tudalen y pecyn 43



CIPFA, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, is the professional 
body for people in public finance. CIPFA shows the way in public finance globally, standing 
up for sound public financial management and good governance around the world as the 
leading commentator on managing and accounting for public money. 

  

Further information about CIPFA can be obtained at www.cipfa.org  

 

Any questions arising from this submission should be directed to: 

 

Richard Lloyd-Bithell 
Senior Policy and Technical Manager 
CIPFA  
 
Tel: +44 (0)131 221 8653 
Email: Richard.Lloyd-Bithell@cipfa.org  
 

 
 

 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 44

http://www.cipfa.org/
mailto:Richard.Lloyd-Bithell@cipfa.org


 
 

1. Executive summary 

 CIPFA is pleased for the opportunity to provide evidence to the committee. As a 
professional body for public finance, we take a special interest in the good public 
financial management, administration, and the devolution of powers.   

 Set out below are comments made by CIPFA in relation to the Welsh Tax Acts 
(Power to modify) Bill.  

 The bill is anticipated to be used in response to external changes not to be used to 
instigate tax policy changes. The act is significant in its powers, including it’s remit of 
making retrospective changes. Wales constitutional arrangements sets out as clear 
lines by providing that it was illegal for the government to raise taxes except to the 
extent that Parliament had granted it the power to do so. Under the Government of 
Wales Act, Senedd Cymru (Welsh Parliament), has the power to decide whether and 
to what extent people should be subject to devolved taxes. 

 The Bill clearly outlines amendments to three Acts of Senedd Cymru, together 
referred to as the Welsh Tax Acts. Which will establish a framework for the collection 
and administration of devolved taxes – to be administered by the Welsh Revenue 
Authority, with particular focus on Land Transaction Tax (LTT) and Landfill Disposal 
Tax (LDT).  

 This bill would delegate to the Welsh Government (the executive) from the Senedd 
(the legislature) power to change tax legislation made by the Senedd. This is a 
common delegation of power we have seen utilised by Welsh Government using 
powers granted to them by UK Acts of Parliament (enabling Acts) to react with urgent 
need to take action to protect the public in response to Covid-19 Pandemic, as an 
example of an external factor requiring use of these powers by the executive. In 
principle the balance of power between the executive and the legislature must be 
closely considered in these matters. The Chartered Institute of Taxation and the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales stated that their default 
position is that tax legislation should be in primary legislation, and particularly in the 
case where legislation relates to the exercise of tax powers, except in very 
exceptional circumstances – which CIPFA would agree with this principle. CIPFA 
recognises that in response to these concerns the scope of the bill has been 
restricted the power to exercise the act by the executive has been restricted to the 
four sets of circumstances outlined in the draft bill.  

 Under the Bill as introduced, the Welsh Ministers would have the power under 
section 1 to amend the Welsh Tax Acts (and any regulations made under them) if 
they considered that the modifications were necessary or appropriate for or in 
connection with: 

• ensuring that LTT or LDT is not imposed where to do so would be 
incompatible with any international obligations; 

• protecting against tax avoidance in relation to LTT or LDT; 
• responding to a change to a predecessor tax that affects, or may affect, the 

amounts paid into the Welsh Consolidated Fund under section 118(1) of the 
Government of 15 Wales Act 2006; 

• responding to a decision of a court or tribunal that affects, or may affect, the 
operation of any of the Welsh Tax Acts or regulations made under any of 
those Acts. 

Tudalen y pecyn 45



 
 

 Clause 2(1)(c) enables the Welsh Ministers to make Regulations which have 
retrospective effect. CIPFA has a concern in regard to retrospection and the draft 
statement on retrospection This procedure should not be used to introduce a tax 
change from a date prior to the date on which it was announced, and we believe that 
the draft statement should be clarified to confirm that this is not the intention. If it is so 
intended, there should be a formal confirmation that such an approach would be in 
very exemption circumstances and that it would be supplemented by a detailed and 
compelling reasoning for such a procedure. 

 In regard to Clause 2(1)(B) – CIPFA, in principles are concerned by the power to 
make or extend a penalty without amendment to existing primary legislation. Such 
power should be made through primary legislation. 

 In summary CIPFA, supports the policy purpose behind the Bill in principle. Given 
that the UK Government continues to make changes to the Stamp Duty Land Tax 
(SDLT) regime, it important that the Welsh Government has the mechanism needed 
to be able to react to such changes if they are likely to have a significant impact on 
Land Transaction Tax (LTT). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 46



 
 

2. Welsh Tax Acts (Power to Modify) Bill Comments 

Under section 2, we have made commentary against each question, in order, raised 
in the Committees call for evidence from expert witnesses, also considering the 
adoption of modifying tax legislation and it’s effectiveness and potential alternative 
approaches.  

2.1 Considerations of the general principles of the Bill and the need for 
legislation? 
 
2.1.1 There is significance of the bill regarding its potential impact on public 

administration and risk to Welsh Government in it’s ability to raise and collect 
taxes within the parameters of the specific taxes outlined in the bill. The level 
of delegated powers should be proportionate to the problem they aim to 
resolve. CIPFA understands that the Welsh Government needs the ability to 
respond to changes made to SDLT by the UK Government and the 
mechanism to react to swiftly to identified tax avoidance schemes and 
unexpected court rulings. 

 Considering the four purposes of the bill and it’s intended use, CIPFA has the 
following observations; 

2.1.2 “Ensuring that LTT or LDT is not imposed where to do so would be 
incompatible with any international obligations” - section 116A(3) of the 
Government of Wales Act 2006 states ‘A devolved tax may not be imposed 
where to do so would be incompatible with any international obligations.’ 

 To enable the Welsh Tax Acts to be amended swiftly if the reason for the 
incompatibility with international obligations lies in those Acts. It also stands to 
reason, the power should be capable of being exercised retrospectively. 

2.2.2 “protecting against tax avoidance in relation to LTT or LDT” – CIPFA 
supports mitigating the risks of tax avoidance. However, Part 3A of the Tax 
Collection and Management (Wales) Act 2016 (a Wales Tax Act) already 
contains a broad general anti-avoidance rule. This applies where a person or 
entity enters an arrangement for the main or sole purpose of obtaining a tax 
advantage, and that arrangement is an artificial one when measured by 
reference to certain statutory criteria.  Should these cases arise, the Welsh 
Revenue Authority (WRA) can start a process which can lead to tax 
adjustments against the taxpayer. If the matter comes to be determined 
before a court or tribunal, it is for the WRA to prove both that there is an 
artificial tax avoidance arrangement, and that the adjustments are reasonable 
(Section 81H). In summary – CIPFA does not have any substantive comment 
on the new bill, as the power to  

2.2.3 “responding to a change to a predecessor tax that affects, or may affect, 
the amounts paid into the Welsh Consolidated Fund under section 
118(1) of the Government of 15 Wales Act 2006” – As the committee will 
be aware The Welsh Consolidated Fund is the money that pays for the 
devolved governance of Wales. Its main component is the annual block grant 
received from the UK Government. Under the arrangements agreed between 
the UK and Welsh Governments, the block grant is adjusted if the UK 
Government changes an UK government tax which is the equivalent of a 

Tudalen y pecyn 47



 
 

devolved tax. So if the UK Government increases the rate of SDLT (the 
equivalent to LTT), the block grant is reduced, and vice versa. In CIPFA’s 
view The policy need for a mechanism that enables swift action in these sorts 
of circumstances is clear. 

2.2.4 “responding to a decision of a court or tribunal that affects, or may 
affect, the operation of any of the Welsh Tax Acts or regulations made 
under any of those Acts” - In board terms, the measures will allow primary 
legislation to be overridden by secondary legislation in four defined 
circumstances. Although adopting this approach is not one we would 
advocate under our principles. In the case of the anti-avoidance purpose, it 
allows the Welsh Ministers to change the Welsh Tax Acts in response to an 
external challenge to the way in which they operate. The difference in this 
case, however, is that the amendment will not be made to avert the use of a 
loophole, but rather to respond to a decision of a court of law. It is not 
uncommon for the law to be changed in response to a decision of a court.  
Where the law in question is primary legislation, that would normally be done 
by further primary legislation, unless the power to do so is given to the 
executive. The challenge is that, as in the case of the anti-avoidance 
provision, the drafting of the Bill does not reflect this approach. Rather it gives 
the Welsh Ministers the power, should they choose to do so, to achieve 
routine policy changes, significant or otherwise, and to overturn decisions 
made in a court of law. The principle of this should be considered in order to 
‘future proof’ the bill.  

2.2 The appropriateness of the powers in the Bill for Welsh Ministers to make 
subordinate legislation (as set out in Chapter 5 of Part 1 of the Explanatory 
Memorandum)? 

 
2.2.1 This bill would delegate to the Welsh Government (the executive) from the 

Senedd (the legislature) power to change tax legislation made by the Senedd. 
This is a common delegation of power we have seen utilised by Welsh 
Government using powers granted to them by UK Acts of Parliament 
(enabling Acts) to react with urgent need to take action to protect the public in 
response to Covid-19 Pandemic, as an example of an external factor 
requiring use of these powers by the executive. 

2.2.2 In principle the balance of power between the executive and the legislature 
must be closely considered in these matters. The Chartered Institute of 
Taxation and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales 
stated that their default position is that tax legislation should be in primary 
legislation, and particularly in the case where legislation relates to the 
exercise of tax powers, except in very exceptional circumstances – which 
CIPFA would agree with in Principle. 

2.2.3 CIPFA recognises that in response to these concerns the scope of the bill has 
been restricted the power to exercise the act by the executive has been 
restricted to the four sets of circumstances outlined in the draft bill. 

2.3 Any potential barriers to the implementation of these provisions and whether the Bill 
takes account of them?  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 48



 
 

2.3.1 CIPFA would note that tax avoidance schemes operate outside of any 
oversight and appear resistant to changes designed to stop their activities. In 
relation to tax avoidance, these changes would impact upon the taxpayer who 
entered into a scheme rather than who continue to abuse the system. While it 
is right that measures should be aimed at the taxpayer, the Welsh 
Government should consider whether it has the necessary powers to tackle 
the promoters of egregious tax avoidance schemes. Otherwise CIPFA has no 
other substantive comment.  

 
2.4 Whether there are any unintended consequences arising from the Bill? 

2.4.1 We cannot think of any external events at the current time which would not be 
covered by the four purpose tests. As a general principle, and given our 
comments above, these powers should be used cautiously and only in 
defined circumstances, so we think that the four tests are sufficient for the 
current environment. We suggest the position is kept under review and. if 
further events are identified, then these could be considered at that stage 

2.5 The appropriateness of section 3 (Policy statement: regulations under section 1 that 
have retrospective effect) and the draft policy statement published alongside the Bill? 

2.5.1 CIPFA has a concern in regard to retrospection and the draft statement on 
retrospection This procedure should not be used to introduce a tax change 
from a date prior to the date on which it was announced, and we believe that 
the draft statement should be clarified to confirm that this is not the intention. 

  If it is so intended, there should be a formal confirmation that such an 
approach would be in very exemption circumstances and that it would be 
supplemented by a detailed and compelling justification for such a procedure.  

2.6 The financial implications of the Bill (as set out in Part 2 of the Explanatory 
Memorandum)? 

 2.6.1 Based on the financial impact assessments CIPFA has no material concern 
  from the outcome of these assessments. However CIPFA wish to highlight 
  the potential costs from adapting systems, building capacity and data, should 
  a retrospective liability calculation be needed. 

Tudalen y pecyn 49



Ymateb ACCA i Ymgynghoriad Pwyllgor Cyllid y Senedd ar Fil Deddfau Trethi 
Cymru ac ati (Y Pŵer i Addasu) – Ionawr 2022 

Ynglyn ag ACCA 

ACCA (Cymdeithas y Cyfrifwyr Ardystiedig Siartredig) yw'r corff proffesiynol byd-
eang ar gyfer cyfrifwyr proffesiynol. Rydym yn gymuned fyd-eang ffyniannus o 
233,000 o aelodau a 536,000 o fyfyrwyr wedi’u lleoli mewn 178 o wledydd a 
rhanbarthau, sy’n gweithio ar draws ystod eang o sectorau a diwydiannau. Yng 
Nghymru, mae gennym dros 6,000 o aelodau a myfyrwyr yn gweithio ar draws ystod 
o sectorau gan gynnwys yn ymarferol, yn y sector cyhoeddus, gwasanaethau
ariannol, gweithgynhyrchu a hamdden a lletygarwch. Rydym yn cynnal y gwerthoedd
proffesiynol a moesegol uchaf. Rydym yn cynnig y cyfle i bawb ym mhobman gael
gyrfa werth chweil mewn cyfrifeg, cyllid a rheolaeth. Mae ein cymwysterau a’n
cyfleoedd dysgu yn datblygu arweinwyr busnes strategol, gweithwyr proffesiynol
blaengar sydd â’r arbenigedd ariannol, busnes a digidol sy’n hanfodol ar gyfer creu
sefydliadau cynaliadwy a chymdeithasau llewyrchus. Er 1904, mae bod yn rym er
lles y cyhoedd wedi'i wreiddio yn ein pwrpas. Credwn fod cyfrifyddiaeth yn broffesiwn
conglfaen cymdeithas a’i fod yn hanfodol i helpu economïau, sefydliadau ac
unigolion i dyfu a ffynnu. Gwnawn hyn drwy greu rheolaeth ariannol a busnes cadarn
y gellir ymddiried ynddi, brwydro yn erbyn llygredd, sicrhau bod sefydliadau’n cael eu
rheoli’n foesegol, ysgogi cynaliadwyedd, a darparu cyfleoedd gyrfa gwerth chweil.
Trwy ein hymchwil flaengar, rydym yn arwain y proffesiwn trwy ateb cwestiynau
heddiw a pharatoi ar gyfer y dyfodol. Rydym yn sefydliad nid-er-elw.

Dysgwch fwy ar: accaglobal.com 

Sylwadau Cyffredinol 

Yn ein hadroddiad 2020,  ‘Sylfeini ar gyfer System Dreth gadarn: Symlrwydd, 
Sicrwydd, Sefydlogrwydd’  Nododd ACCA dair egwyddor hanfodol y dylai fframwaith 
treth geisio eu cydbwyso: symlrwydd, sicrwydd a sefydlogrwydd. Dylai'r rhain hefyd 
weithredu fel meincnodau y gall llunwyr polisi a'r cyhoedd eu defnyddio i fesur cynnal 
a gwella system drethi.  

I fusnesau ac i’r economi ehangach, mae mater sefydlogrwydd ar ei fwyaf, yn 
enwedig i fusnesau sy’n wynebu llif arian cyfyngedig yn dilyn y pandemig. Bydd 
busnesau sy’n cynllunio unrhyw fath o fuddsoddiad hirdymor yn llai tebygol o 
ymrwymo i gamau gweithredu penodol os yw’r canlyniad ariannol yn ansicr. Mae hyn 
yn arbennig o bwysig yn y cyd-destun presennol lle mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn dilyn 
amcanion strategol i sicrhau adferiad cynaliadwy a chynhwysol, a fydd yn gofyn am 
ryw lefel o fuddsoddiad busnes.  

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee 
FIN(6)-05-22 P4

Tudalen y pecyn 50

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.accaglobal.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7CLilly.Aaron%40accaglobal.com%7C89388545bbef41790e4408d9616836e5%7Cf2e7de2c59ba49fe8c684cd333f96b01%7C0%7C0%7C637647922482649595%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=%2BCSvcNp%2B67HSITIWhFATNZx8ltO0ZizFP%2F4szaAEBvY%3D&reserved=0


Mae ACCA o'r farn y gall mwy o ymrwymiad i symlrwydd a gwelliannau strwythurol 
gwirioneddol i'r system dreth wwella dealltwriaeth trethdalwyr o'r fframwaith treth, ac 
yn ei dro arwain at fwy o dryloywder ac atebolrwydd.  
 
Sylwadau Penodol  
 
Credwn mai’r dull deddfwriaethol ôl-weithredol yw’r ateb olaf, pan fetho popeth arall, 
ac y dylid ei ystyried dim ond pan fydd pob opsiwn arall wedi’i hystyried. Yn yr 
adroddiad y soniwyd amdano uchod, dywedom: “Trafodir y sgop ar gyfer 
camddefnydd o ansicrwydd ac effaith rheolau gwrth-osgoi, ynghyd â’r 
mecanweithiau y gall gweinyddiaethau treth eu defnyddio i sicrhau nad yw busnesau 
sy’n cydymffurfio o dan anfantais o ganlyniad i eraill ecsbloetio sefyllfa ansicr neu 
amwys.  
 
Mae'r tensiwn rhwng symlrwydd a sicrwydd yn cael ei waethygu gan anghenion a 
blaenoriaethau gwahanol rhwng gwahanol ddosbarthiadau o drethdalwyr, ac mae'n 
cynyddu pwysigrwydd llunio polisïau ystyriol gan ddylunwyr systemau. Efallai na fydd 
modd osgoi cyfaddawd pragmatig wedi’i deilwra, ond nid yw hynny’n esgusodi 
deddfwyr o’u rhwymedigaeth sylfaenol i ddylunio trethi yn ofalus ac yn feddylgar.”  
 
Byddwch yn nodi fod yn well gennym fesurau gwrth-osgoi cryfach, fodd bynnag, lle 
nad oes dewis ymarferol arall ar gael, ac rydym yn cydnabod y gallai Llywodraeth 
Cymru gyflymu newid i’r gyfraith o dan amgylchiadau eithriadol.  
 
Dylai'r rhain gael eu cydbwyso gan fesurau diogelu priodol a all gynnwys proses 
gyda'r mesur yn cychwyn o'r dyddiad y cwblheir y broses. Er enghraifft, ddim 
cychwyn y mesur nes cyhoeddir newid i’r Senedd, rhoddir cyhoeddusrwydd i’r newid 
ac y gwneir eglurder ynghylch pryd y bydd y bil yn cael ei gyflwyno.  
 
Am fwy o wybodaeth cysylltwch â: Lloyd Powell, ACCA Cymru/Wales 
Lloyd.powell@accaglobal.com 

Tudalen y pecyn 51



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 52

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 67

Eitem 5Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 73

Eitem 8Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42


	Agenda
	2 Papurau i’w nodi
	Cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 21 Ionawr

	2.1 PTN 1 - Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol: Cyfarfod Pedrochrog y Gweinidogion Cyllid - 21 Ionawr 2022
	2.2 PTN 2 - Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Cyllid a Llywodraeth Leol ynglŷn â’r Bil Trethi: Bil Deddfau Trethi Cymru etc. (Pŵer i Addasu) - 24 Ionawr 2022
	2.3 PTN 3 - Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol: Ddefnyddio cyfalaf trafodiadau ariannol - 26 Ionawr 2022
	2.4 PTN 4 - Adroddiad y Swyddfa Archwilio Genedlaethol: Gweinyddu cyfraddau treth incwm Cymru 2020-21 - Ionawr 2022
	GD to Senedd Finance Committee 210122.pdf
	NAO report annex.pdf

	3 Bil Deddfau Trethi Cymru etc. (Pŵer i Addasu): Sesiwn dystiolaeth 2
	Papur Briffio gan Ymchwil y Senedd (Saesneg yn unig)

	4 Bil Deddfau Trethi Cymru etc. (Pŵer i Addasu): Sesiwn dystiolaeth 3
	FIN(6)-05-22 P3 - Sefydliad Siartredig Cyllid Cyhoeddus a Chyfrifyddiaeth (Saesneg yn unig)
	1. Executive summary
	2. Welsh Tax Acts (Power to Modify) Bill Comments

	FIN(6)-05-22 P4 - Cymdeithas Cyfrifwyr Ardystiedig Siartredig y DU
	Papur Briffio gan Ymchwil y Senedd (Saesneg yn unig)

	5 Bil Deddfau Trethi Cymru etc. (Pŵer i Addasu): Sesiwn dystiolaeth 4
	8 Bil Addysg Drydyddol ac Ymchwil (Cymru): Trafod yr adroddiad drafft

